

1688

Resolutions S9. 1688 (contd)

[WRC 650].

Note for Yemas note book (9) p 82.

~~Note for L.D. (15) p 62.~~

"Scholium 30 March 1688."

[S9. 6113]

[Copy.] Notes

Joan Nieman for You on behalf

of 1st Lt Rector of Blung this date viz
to

for incident Swarts for You on behalf
of the no S9. of U. G. other than WRC to
or course of Africa.

The increasing value of 1st Lt's architectural manuscripts
with which 1st Lt has provided 1st Lt of Blung & his
date 1st Lt on this course during the period
of 1st Lt's direction it will be necessary to relate
herein, since they show nothing else than
a sketching of our past a general schilende
under the ^{mem} mounting of dissimulated friendship
on which account then - (selling) and to

which happened in the time of our predecessors,
 namely the Tocorony massacre the carrying
 off of 2 Port ships from this roadstead,
 the capture of the frigate "Waterhoofd")
 we will remind you [of the USA Konink
Sullen Vermeenten] only of what the violence
 committed in our time & the overboard & "savage"
 committed at Tocorony by the Muyse before
 at Tocorony in their expedition of 6th February
last [1684]: also the speaking of the canon on
 that place we have sufficiently deduced in
 our letter of the eigensten dag & afterwards
 in our protest of 23rd April & the ongehuyftheyten
 waarwede uyt sijn antwoord en actie die vort
 weg van al de werelt door uyt gedemitteerde
Muyse soldaten gepeperet is bestoot in
 uzeren, as also the violence committed on
 that words on 23 February in a Port shipje
 named Rosa Dulhona de Pilar gedcan,
 behoorlyk aan dese lants Maestres gemonstreert
 in certain desavantie extent of which we to you
kenacht (uor).

Of the steel the Redi ship named Polwyck
 compelled on gih leph compelled a Port shipje

which came sailing and within 9000 pabs was destined
here that same evening for us from St Thomé by means of
a vessel of firing a cannon shot to come to anchor & afterwards
brought us to del Uraio which place crosses "islands" with, ^{without} ~~with~~ ^{no} ~~any~~ ^{islands}
where woods is faithfully ^{electoral} burned & de ^{electoral} ill: Aff: to ^{permitted} ~~permitted~~
in the trade which it was about to do and at Port Philippe
All regarding to shipping & schools of the St Abel V B &
his Aff: Co₂ who were undoubtedly know how to find
its excess & verging of damage suffered by this & other
occasions of that nature.

Finally of the last ^{scripted} to fetch from there &
have brought prisoner to Del Uraio, 2 soldiers who, in the
name of the St of B de A. C. under his flag flying
there, because of the painful position of Lopez & Co₂
ports & there ~~but~~ ^{but} still ^{was} ^{on} ^{the} ^{instant}
similarly ^{assigned} ~~was~~ ~~master~~ ^{master} of the de ill: B de de
borroha or Picada (which has had ^{merciful} ⁱⁿ ^{prison} ~~in~~ ~~prison~~)
for more than 3 1/2 years & since ^{of} ^{quanta} ^{with} ^{excessive}
costs have built up so far from the ground):
made ^{for} ^{himself} ^{master} of one Co₂'s warehouse: sent
the sub factor Moracin Troben ^{from} ^{prisoner} ^{to}
Bombay ^{with} ^{great} ^{promises} & ^{figures} ^{to}
instruments and solitary sent to ^{persuade} ^{our} ^{soldiers}
lying in garrison there & at Tecora, (some of

both sufficient reasons was your nature & behavior
to take the crown in hand to make it a kingdom for the
& to punish & reward the people as you see fit
pardon the whole your parents have long been.

That as we are not inclined to possess the
kingdoms beyond the Indies which of the people
... we have still it necessary to "inquire" of the
nominally to remain yet, that to prevent all
disasters, for on each of these hand our subjects

Admiral Errolen, at Solani which both James
van Groningen ^{into} in the hands of Captain Michael Tesmer;
four great sea adventures the last of the
of Ascada to be rewarded & your servants with in

sometimes 24 hours, provide satisfaction ^{done by} the request
doubtful suffered & further that of with ^{done by} protest that -
to will not be responsible for consequences of such refusal -
Please done in Fort Great Plains & Puerto de ^(sic) Oct: 1687
(Sgd.) Joan Nievan

To this was no reply at that the entire coast
of Africa belongs to them. [Overseas]

A. We do understand declare & testify that it is true
that one of the of this world new style arrived at
Ascada between 20 & 30 small & large canoes in

the doctor (who soon falling with the General for Guat
: & eagerly enjoying themselves) had given orders for them
to be called down for diseases to present themselves
whenever they, the private Johan Boeth & Mason Carl
Abrechtzen were persuaded to go below thinking that
the doctor had some order to give them: but being
come there ^{they} were at once surrounded by negroes, arrested
& deprived of their arms without any reason being given
them but that the Accada Hill as well as Manfro
hill belonged to them, & that they would quickly
follow this they also asked them if they would enter
into ^{flat} ~~flat~~ ^{land} ~~land~~ with promise of promotion & all the
pay that the B. C. still owed them, and that at once
paid them in gold which proposal was absolutely
refused by them. Meanwhile ~~the~~

the Major General sent his men up & order to
bevochtigen the rest of the soldiers reasons being
first in use which being done they ^{traced} ~~traced~~ themselves
of the parchment & inventories all the ports
pannelion in it, urged us again to take notice with
them with promises of promotion & pay due, which
being refused as before, Johan Boeth 12 negroes
were dismissed to come hither with 4 slaves &
4 women slaves of the B. C. & returning men with

den 10^{de} dezes kwam er een brief van hem, welke
 biffend was dat: stillt niet without some of
 good being done for us during the absence -
 of ^{per} his said specimen (u.o.r). We find jointly
 declare that Factor Belmain Proble several
 times, ~~hath~~ with weenede oogen, himself
 reported also reported also by us, that he
 will be sent out as to St. Rochesburg, but i
 vain as they said they would send him to Del Union
 as being a subject of the state & had formerly
 served them on this Coast, which the General
 used thus or similar words. Asking firstly whether
 he, Factor, had not previously served W.C.
 which he him being "bejaat" over hij voort
 whether he him is of de tijd dat i Blung
 dienst op de kust geweest waar wel ook
 een briefje geschreven hadde, waarop als
 der anderen ^{gewest} ~~gehoort~~ reflecteinde dat sulks niet
 was gebleven ^{gehoort} ~~gehoort~~ so geboot so General aan hem
 dat te ~~bliven~~ shoud te welen & son nothing
 hi get verdt te go to Bonting dat same soening,
 te gewijde Jan Bock ~~the~~ waren Carol
 Olbrechts also testif, dat in deni departure
 Factor Proble, ^{had} ~~had~~ then, is seuek, dat de butch

General certainly interested ^{also} in attack Fort ^{of} Flings: Col
 he old Social had sufficiently declared such, & ^{the} ^{supply}
 had chiefly enquired for Jan Boek what ^{supply} ^{of}
 victuals water & ammunition was in here how
 many whites show any health or sick upon all that
 was using to them. Besides all of it take true &
 prepared to take good care of it if necessary.

Actum in Fort of Flings in Quinto 9th October 1684

(Sgd) Johan Boek / Johan Luiman / Courcast Stöckan /
 wark of Hans Martin Lüttsan / Carl Albrecht / wark of René
 Herwanz / wark of Mathys Pöters.

This day, 31 October 1684, appeared before us the Councilors
 of the Fort of Flings de hieron geschreuen persons according to
 all what stands ^{confession} in offo deposition is true. So help them God.
 (Sgd)

Jan Luiman

Jean ten Huijff
 Michel Tesmer.

12
1688

15th May. 1688

SJ.
BAC.

I read at Assembly the Memorial from Sr W.C.
 Prs Chr Knight re their Letter of 27th ulto
 w^{ch} contains that the considerations by the BAC on
 C of G. w^{ch} first proposal was to be feared for
 the C^o especially then the law to devise such salutary
 measures for prevention of total ^{ruin} ^{destruction} of sd W.C.
 to make provision for repairs of such considerable
 damage caused to C^o by hostile actions in time
 of peace, as it their wisdom they shall find
 proper for the importance of the matter. — Copy
 of Memo^{rs} presented & passed of in Sr W.C. for the
 dep^t to be ^{of the} ^{part of} ^{the} ^{W.C.} ^{depts} ^{to be} ^{referred} ^{to} ^{the} ^{respective} ^{depts.}

[SJ 5789. $\frac{1}{2}$ original of above letter - not very correct].

18th May 1688

Read Memo^{rs} from Sr W.C. — re Amiens wanted
 breaking of Spain — & c. orig^l is SJ 5789.

21st May 1688

Same subject — resolved to write letters of Spain
 in favour of the for W.C. for Amiens.

5 June 1688

Original Recd is Sh. 136 (recd: fr 5 June being omitted
in printed copies Sh 650).

Recd a letter from his W.C. th Assembly of X B.A.C.
written at Amst 3rd inst containing, in compliance with
Hollers resolution of 22nd ulto, [a ~~letter~~ which was
a reminder to do to reply to ^{complaints} ~~complaints~~ made by von Brist
at de Assembly] their report on the complaints made by
van der Brist to Sen of Direct of Amst to Hollers against
de first Sen of W.C. or C. of G. over what happened ^{at}
Acada Yuccozari upon which celebrated ^{letter} ~~at~~ ^{to}
Hollers is hands of van Verbold for Hollers says for affairs of
W.C. to see report thereof at Assembly.

[Sh 5784 .. the original of above letter addressed
"dat 3 June 1688." is in Sh 5784. But
rec 5

(A-F.)

photographs of it of the annexes, have been taken for
the prints of all them: W.C. resp. 1166.

But the following ~~to~~ copy letter at beginning of box
Annex E which has been omitted from the printed copies
is noted here:—

E "Extract from a letter written by Niccolao Saverio
Sh: Guinea with his of W.C. at Assembly of X del 20 Oct 1687.

1688. Hon. Board. re / the 29th Augst last was as
last to yth Hon^{ble} for Skipper Luysenburgh of

89. We are obliged ~~our~~ ^{to} ~~weak~~ ^{has been} ~~to~~ ^{some what} ~~Verhoorn~~
with the despatch of the confiscated shipje
Kruslerburgh, Skipper Incoloo dangwan,
about the three reasons; first, re secondly that
yth Hon^{ble} will please take what ^{is} ~~and~~ ^[did?] ~~and~~, or our long looking
~~from~~ Excellence ~~our~~ ^{jointly} referring to ~~the~~
~~document~~ ^{about it} ~~to~~ ^{with} ~~which~~ ~~re~~ ~~a~~
De heer

bon: de Castle St George del Unia
the 20 Octr 1684

12th June 1688

French
Guinea Co
It was at Assembly the memorie from the directors
of the W.C. returned of ^{Annexures} ~~by~~ ~~the~~ ~~comrs~~ that they
found themselves compelled to represent to their Ho^{rs} that
that the Comte d'Araxes the Amb^{assador} of King of
France on 15 Oct 1684 had delivered a ^{to} their
Ho^{rs}. a memo^{andum} ~~with~~ ~~concerning~~ ~~the~~ ~~business~~
of W.C. on C. of G. Africa residing at Castle
St George d'Unia in Guinea; on 6th
June following ~~re~~ ~~the~~ ~~report~~ ~~thereon~~ was

688 Axeu & afterwards on about Secretary had tried
 to take person there either ~~with~~ with or
 French or with, whereby the of a prisoner had been
 compelled to make the very ^{permission} vornehmige for the
 protection of the Coys persons as appears in the
 report of her: annexed under (B)

Worshippers however the French workshops proceeding
 in due manner for the taking of persons on
 the G.C of G. had, by subt & dexterity means,
 succeeded in obtaining from the King of
 Gu Comani consent to take person or
Obriety directly ^{embalming} struck with the contacts of
 our gift ^{transfers} made by dot King to W.C., in like
 manner as the B.A.C's servants, had been ^{brought in} physically
 & de rebellious subjects on the spot Court as of 1700
 or 30 June 1697 ^{declared it had appeared to dem} was destruction has subjection
 to life. ^{and} ^{as agents} ^{bring up in} consequence the intending of the French
 can appear out of the annexed extract (C)

Which proceedings of the French appears very strange
 to the ears as they could not believe that His
 Majesty of France would have given orders for such
 pitiful ^{hostilities} brutal consequences, that His Majesty ^{would} not use
 with laws "legitimized" the proceedings of the French
 workshops on G.C of G in taking person of places

which could not be regarded otherwise than as
injurious & menacing to navigation & trade
conforming to public law & treaties ... whereby
the affairs within the limits of WTC were carried,
or a part of the same joined by the Plungers,
is an open war, in which by articles 38 & 40
of the Charter of the WTC, the Powers
possessed all help & assistance by giving warships,
- as far as of Article 40.

Alert which is to be expected, that the Powers
will not abandon the WTC. Further on
whether or not they are to be expected, that the Powers
will take prompt & efficacious means in land
whenever the WTC may be maintained in their
own interests, navigation, & commerce
& the damage caused, made good. ...

Copies of above letter are to be kept by Powers of
the WTC, & of Zealand to be carried for its
interests & advantage, & also placed in hands of
the Powers for the WTC as far as of WTC to
be kept there.

[89 5484. Original of above memo (in which above letter
copies letter) with following annexes: —

B.

Extract from diary of D. G. Jackson Lucent
- Guineo.

Friday 21 November 1694.

In afternoon &c.

We at same time, recd advice from Azcom

from Pector Verdijk ad 17. 18. & 20 inst advising
in de first del time, on 14th inst, had ^{arrived} ~~and~~ the French
ship "La Tempette" 24 guns 120 men of whom 30
soldiers being at Attine taken at Zeeland Quar-
loger Joris Bartelsz & according to his own sd
Pector, that Frenchman had came expressly to
vessels ^{spy on} the coast & to take possession of Comany
& ^{help} ⁱⁿ ^{which} two years to be master of
the coast.

Friday 22nd ditto

On the morning we recd advice from Socorro
Vol 4 ~~had~~ ~~was~~ ~~ships~~ the French warship "La
Tempette" had arriv'd before Tocorony trying to
take possession ^{either voluntarily or by constraint} the ~~island~~ ~~or~~ ~~island~~, whereupon
the Indefatigable Socor has arriv'd at Tocorony
he was with some powder & ball; and we
wrote at once a letter to Pector de Barij
at Chama to send 21 Coy Slaves and powder &c

which same time ^{received the} challenge ^{abstract a good} Boatwright school & Connaught.

688

to Secunde is a se to see the way now from
 subject's Soor when we orred it are to send,
 for reinforcement of the whites, three slaves drifter
 to Connaught.

The subject's Boatwright carries the drift ships
 the French flag and drift ships from the French
ships came morning to the shore; but that he
 had them refused with to come on shore; but
 unless they proceeded to the shore, whereupon
 he had a shot fired over the ships they afterwards
^{raised} could back again on board the French ships
 then sailed to leeward.

Saturday 13 Decr 1681.

In morning etc.

The French war ships being now three in number ^{plying up to windward} as
 [details of names & of date] are now detour
operating across the lower, to all appearance is
 order to buy & obtain person at Connaught; wherefore
 we shall still send a body of My soldiers
drifter & order to protect the Capt's house against
whites.

C.

Chocteau ditto.

Saturday 6th December 1684.

At midday we recd advice from Comany that the
 King of Great Comany had allowed the French to
 take possession of this Oberiby which ^{contrary to} strydende takes
 the order of the Contract Contracte; that the French have
 sailed thither with a ship & in a to paylen paylen ^{take soundings}
 the ground.

Monday 15th ditto

In evening at 8 o'clock we recd advice from Empeny ^[Ampemi] that
 about 100 negroes from Great Comany had come with gunner
 & in a store to make room at a suitable place so that
 the French should ^{build} a choyfe a fort there, this being a
 matter directly strydende against the Contract & promises of
 the King of Comany. Time will ^{show} keep firm.

[The Resol of 12 June 1684]:

As at Assembly recd the Memorie from the King of WRC
 through D. Byler, that they used not defense nor were
 to come & represent to tho tho the King of the Pres
 that was as an 15th day but also many & repeated
 times firmly have complainingly represented to tho tho
 the design of the disposed of the choyfe men, subjects of tho tho, is as

BAC.

if possible to define the WRC of the PC of Guinea
 life as had already appeared to Holmes in former
 years but that such had remained unimpeded
 which consequently had brought a considerable
 "success" with respect to B.A.C. who were
 said to be on the coast with armed ships in view
 of Hull ships but to gain, as was reported to
 Holmes by WRC by means of 15th May - WRC
 attacked A Adam on Road in lands of pegs in off air
 WRC to see & report : but first had heard
 that the Holmes would be there ^{thereupon} have been made
 some "reflex" of a matter of such importance
 for WRC of this State. so that first would women
~~be~~ ^{could be capable of sending} Bequiam to send the very
orders to live for you on the coast, how
proceeding to what he would have to do in such
circumstances : but it had was already of an been
reported to first in what manner the Braille
had written not only the top Holmes in the letter
 & letter to Paris of 20 April : but also to a private
 person by letter of 23rd April usually that the ship of
 Doctor of Blung had was on the to be test : first appearing
 by letters to the copies of letters annexed B. & C.
 from which "retroactive" "interview" nothing else was

contemplated them, as well however in case of where designs
^{should} be sufficiently apparent in former years, that they were working out
 why else than the ruin of the sd W.C., unless (Hobbes) take
 it into their powerful protection in Art 38 of Charter
 ... refer to both of Manilla & Tacuba - which
 belongs to W.C. - in case of persons; to (Hobbes) resol of 30 June 1684.
 to Art 13 of Charter; or (Hobbes) which amount to
 hostile action was Art 40 of Charter - respecting
 (Hobbes) which reason that W.C. to maintain its rights
 a P.C. of S. task for a speedy resolution.
~~The~~ (Hobbes) can deliberate ... [precisely same colour
 as on p 18 supra] ...

Original of above to the W.C. is in 89 5784. (Hobbes);
 A. has been sufficiently noted on p. 12 supra. The same
 B & C are as follows: -

B. To the ^{very extraordinary} ~~fact~~ / ^{that} is extremely vexed about
 Sir / ^{attack upon} ~~that~~ has sig ^{extraordinarily} ~~georgic~~ on this
 most attempt of our ^{works} (Hobbes) does not incline to
 (Hobbes) head of the dispute is not more 3 days
 ago before news that this violence not only
 continued but that Gen ^{Swinscow} was engaged in
 attacking one of our ships ^{by the} ~~at~~ ^{side} that day

before this whole slaves being a place where
de Holl Coy has never had territorial
jurisdiction & now yet in our hands de
Coy flams it I have given how I hope
will again get situated ^{as per it from my heart} by my van herten
leek for this work will be later met well
endeavour his life.

aflopen: for in three capital ships having sailed
on 3 June last, have express order that if change
or their will they burn of any ^{arrange} veranderinglyklyk
the te lande dat they shall be ^{lost} ^{go for} ^{of}
de Holl Coy; & so with the coming of
5 French ^{war} ships which we followed by 8 others

we ^{or} make a rendezvous with us, ^{our} ^{ships} ^{will} ^{have} ^a ^{fine} ^{and} ^{opportunities} ⁱⁿ ^{this} ^{island} ^{de} ^{flams} ^{gullen} ^{schon} ^{hebben} ^{so} ^{well}
you can well end madly
You bet well will aflopen: for de French were
refused admission to the

[1] de ^{longer} ^{before} ^{proxim} de ^{eyes} ^{off} ^{gentlemen}; & ^{of} ^{Comman} ^{dear}
de French will toward ^{the} ^{head} ^{has} ^{been} ^{occupied} ^{of} ^{de} ^{Shard} ^{with} ^{French} ^{men} ⁽ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{island?)}
veel ^{by} ^{many} ^{armed} ^{negroes} ^{to} ^{work} ^{at} ^{the} ^{French} ^{men} ^{on} ^{de} ^{lands}
te keeren: in which case ^{of} ^{the} ^{ship} ^{of} ^{our}
they [with] have already captured
all they could find & have already captured [the ship of]
been ^{who} ^{has} ^{been} ^{taken} ^{to} ^{land}

Louis Broute, van Vlissingen captured this is what
our Governor desires we date 9 December 1684.

so I ^{expect} will ^{very} ^{day} a wonderful history have done quarters o
of it will ^{use} ^{concern} ^{and} ^{imagine} from what I have told him
to ^{be} ^{longer} ^{d'} ^{avance} ^{with} (?) his thing would be satisfied
with the ^{repl} ^{of} ^{the} ^{birds} he does to ^{armed} ^{holes} ^{it}
with the ^{group} ^{of} ^{mouth} ^{of} ^{the} ^{cannon}; ^{least}
one ^{of} ^{must} ^{do} ^{against} ^{the} ^{birds}, for if one will let itself
paper with words & discourses so kept even in a
large "pack."

Lehot ^{envis} H.H. will do I can't think I guess not
our ^{en} ^{bird} ^{will} ^{say} ^{what} ^{is} ^{proper} ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{dogue}
I am assured that this will be with pleasure if also that
H.H. is ^{treated} ^{so} ⁱⁿ ^{return} ^{for} ^{so} ^{much} ^{affection} as H. S. H.
shows ^{for} ^{the} ^{State}

I could well ^{imagine} ^{perhaps} in 8 or 10 days for
Hamburg, & Emden is now to ^{depart} ^{some} ^{ships} ⁱⁿ
with ^{pleas}. ^{if} ^{case} ^{H.H.} ^{becomes} ^{well} ^(sensible)
when I shall ^{with} ^{neglect} ^{take} ^{able} ^{to} ^{hit} ^{upon} ^{how}
very much I am obliged to use his commands.

It is ^{quite} ^{to} ^{some} ^{with} ^{pleas} ...

(Sd) B. Paule

20 April 1688
Berlin,

C. "Copy Extract"

Sei / 16 WRC ^{hardly noted before} has not ^{ever} ^{gerust} ^{voor} ^{dat}
 de kerk ^{came there} door ^{gewonen} ^{wege} ^{before} ^{our} ^{roadstead}
 is ^{adeu} ^{to} ^{go} ^{on} ^{take} ^{possession} ^{of} ^{bay} ^{of} ^{Comauy}
 "a main fort" ^{is} ^{our} ^{three} ^{ships} ^{capital} ^{ships}
^{will} ^{have} ^{come} ^{with} ^{them}
^{will} ^{do} ^{us} ^{some} ^{good} ^{if} ^{we} ^{can} ^{to} ^{take}
^{vengeance} ^{for} ^{these} ^{and} ^{unjust} ^{of} ^{his} ^{attacks}
 so I guess ^{for} ^{you} ^{will} ^{hear} ^{more} ^{business} ^{with} ^{the}
^{first} ^{ships} ^{of} ^{de} ^{Elmuis} ^{orders} ^{to} ^{attack} ^{if} ^{they} ^{learn} ^{on}
^{well} ^{getting} ^{of} ^{others} ^{one} ^{schepen} ^{been} ^{lost}
^{to} ^{be} ^{fasten} ^{coming} ^{there} ^{that} ^{there} ^{have} ^{been} ^{any} ^{previous}
^{hostile} ^{acts} ^{and} ^{they} ^{will} ^{join} ^{with} ^{the} ^{French} ^{to} ^{make} ^a
^{change} ⁱⁿ ^{their} ^{policy} ^{and} ^{join} ^{up} ^{to} ^{make} ^a
^{close} ^{alliance} ^{with} ^{them}
^{have} ^{many} ^{with} ^{de} ^{French} ^{to} ^{begin} ^{make} ^{an}
^{alliance} ^{with} ^{them} ^{what} ^{you} ^{think} ^{is}
^{more} ^{sure} ^{that} ^{the} ^{Dutch} ^{to} ^{make} ^a ^{long} ^{beginning}
^{with} ^{ways} ^{begun} ^{to} ^{shell} ^{with} ^{them} ^{is}
^{of} ^{politics} ^{what} ^{we} ^{are} ^{fall}
ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{whole} ^{of} ^{the} ^{matter} ^{to} ^{be} ^{explained}
^{is} ^{the} ^{whole} ^{of} ^{the} ^{matter} ^{to} ^{be} ^{explained}
^{of} ⁶ ^{or} ⁸ ⁰⁰⁰ ^{reals} ^{spent} ⁱⁿ ^{it} ^{the} ^{game} ^{is} ^{up}
ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{spil} ^{with} ^{we} ^{shall} ^{see} ^{whether} ^{these} ^{are} ^{his} ^{oppression}
^{during} ^{the} ^{last} ^{any} ^{couple} ^{of} ^{years} ^{What} ^{is} ^{your} ^{opinion}
^{do} ^{along} ^{the} ^{coast} ^{of} ^{the} ^{French} ^{is} ^{your} ^{opinion}
^{you} ^{will} ^{do} ^{it} ^{to} ^{do} ^{but} ^{keep} ^{quiet}
^{lecture} ^{is} ^{met} ^{and} ^{to} ^{do} ^{it} ^{as} ^{well}
^I ^{would} ^{expect} ^{more} ^{of} ^{the} ^{same}

to (also) Hamburg & London to see what I can then
 concert with the King: but I shall ^{rather} ~~will~~ ^{rather} ~~will~~
 retain the same tenderness for the States &
 burden ~~for the~~ the same tendresse for the State
 & their well ^{prosperity} ~~power~~ & ~~down~~ ~~about~~ ~~do~~ ~~down~~
 but in ^{we cannot possibly be friends unless prompt}
 restitution is made to us of every thing & we are given complete
 satisfaction of ~~the~~ ~~well~~ ~~interest~~ ~~and~~ ~~also~~ ~~promptly~~
 satisfaction ^{from complete satisfaction given:}
 & if ^{has done} ~~the~~ ~~goods~~ ~~are~~ ~~confiscated~~ ~~&~~ ~~his~~ ~~head~~ ~~laid~~ ~~at~~ ~~our~~ ~~feet:~~
 his goods ^{has done} ~~are~~ ~~confiscated~~ & his head laid at our feet:
 geloght. Je suis &c (w) B. R. R. R. R.

Potsdam 23 April 1688

16 June 1688

Recd Memoire van Bies — again urging restitution BAC
 of Ardebe & Yoris & asking for order ^{with effect}
 who ^{Embsden} ~~is~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~land~~ ~~of~~ ~~Ardebe~~ ~~&~~ ~~Yoris~~
 ready to sail ^{to} ~~Ardebe~~ — da. Hope 15 June 1688.

Copies taken by ^{Verbeek} ~~the~~ ~~King~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~land~~ ~~of~~ ~~Ardebe~~ ~~&~~ ~~Yoris~~ & ^{or} ~~sent~~ ~~to~~ ~~the~~ ~~King~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~land~~ ~~of~~ ~~Ardebe~~ ~~&~~ ~~Yoris~~ to ^{examine a report} ~~see~~ ~~report~~.

decision

Worked the language for board docs : let the name
of that securants of W.C. ^{have} more to test subject ship
of king of house with friendship, support (provided by
^{Keep} maintain have attended ~~to~~ from these places where W.C.
has the lots studies into scarc particular line)
^{to} gather with the exclusive

As regards specific concepts & positive obvious the refn
to use to then letter used (2 June 96 is what is kind
^{is} sup is ch S.C. —

30 July 1688

Read memo to van Brecht after for positive reply re B.A.C.
in concepts about Merita & Securans & what was
concepts what the taking of the ship Berlin & W.C.
at the 30 July. Resolved the first point
to report steps of the start. to do some changes as
soon as possible was to stop "Berlin" copy to be sent to
the W.C. for the Board for report & some as possible

10 Aug 1688

Read report to the W.C. for the Board at 6 Aug.
and reply is at encl: of 30 July. — Copy to
Verholde repts for W.C. affair to see report. Berlin
LHG 5989. Original of then letter. the copy was
captured by Capt Van Hoven of "Windham"

Was reported
 of foot 1790 & was supposed to have sailed from
 Flushing under the name of "St. Rombert" or Bishop of
 Mecheleu & under the Prince
 name is "Berlin" & visited the Brandenburg Coast when off
 along the coast of Cape
 Finisterre -

B.A.C.

13 Augt. 1688

Perce G. G. les Prop. & les autres collect along
 del Reule & cest to suffer large
 what doctor had occasioned ^{him seriously} but the
 Africa ^{affair} & specially ^{the resolution} of sorts of
 Accords & Lecoy. & de ^{judged & demand}
 . . . begs to ^{open requested to declare themselves} the
 without delay ^{upon the} matter -

14 Sept 1688

[. G. long mounts & Amieles - with wife W.C.]

1 Oct 1688

French
Guinea
Co.

^{delays}
 Recd from Memo le Comte d'Arroux le 30 Sept 1688.
 & del. ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur} ^{Porteur}
 & accounts of W.C. [a general sample - no more details]
 Copy take care & begs of the W.C.

26 Oct 1688.

- e Remits -

4 Nov 1688.

e ditto.

31st December 1688

The letters of His of Toll & West Westland
 have brought us to the assembly or opened the advice
 Provincial advice of the two States of that Province
 their principals for the settlement of the difficulties between
 W.C. & A.C. de advice grande ^{to be} dear ^{being to the effect}

BAC

~~that the W.C. should provisionally restore~~ Acada &
 keep Secorax until such time as the matter
 shall be brought ^{in principle} in principle ^{as to matters} as to matters
~~of a search~~ of a search ~~for principals~~ for principals as to matters
 shall be found what the claim and damage suits
 suffered on the either side should be left
 persons. 2 like chosen by each in case of dispute
among them disagreement among them a higher Arbiters to be appointed
by this State of " indistinctly " from among the
Electors or by Electors out of subjects of this State.
Copy advice taken by depts of Stod thande Widom
be written. that know or de his to be requested to declare
themselves a con condition for the

To 22 December 1688

B.A.C.

Is by resumption deliberated op de Unies
 of the best reporting the Unies resolution
 re affairs of B.A.C. ~~is found good a person~~
 to settle & remove the disputes } ~~to difference the affairs between~~
 W.C. B.A.C. ~~the~~ W.C.
 [in identical terms with the Unies advice []
 - Resol of 3 Decr] And extract of this
 the Unies resol: shall be sent to the W.C.
 Res de Unies for their info & to regulate themselves
 accordingly. The Kings of Pruss of Good & honest
 laws "prospectuorie" de above ~~conclusion~~ ^{conclusion}
 opposed

To settle & remove the disputes }

1920 December 1688.

B.A.C.

French
Tunisia Co
War with
France.

Is at Assembly read the Unies in two W.C
 Res de Unies that they had seen that Kings
 of France had been pleased to declare war on
 a State, & that decomp all hostile actions
 to ordonnance into goods out of her
 representatives de can this so may be this need
 godaan by die gene die armieren before de
 unpisidieren of this State, being of the intention
 to make considerable "interferences"

of the Colonies of this Nation ^{at} & all places where they
had established their commerce on the 12 December last.
to ~~give~~ ~~(sic)~~ ~~that~~ a favorable resolution to renew:
that the King having ^{inspected} ~~inspected~~ this (to be resolved
in like cases of captures and neighbouring Princes
things, had inter alia found that the resolution
of 6 Feb 1665 had been pleased to authorize the
~~King~~ for W.C. at all times, on or English,
(under whose laws were then a war) everywhere both
under certain limits, by sea or land, to engage
conquer, possess, & ruin with the force
which W.C. then had ^{with his blessing} under the authority of S.G.:
refusing the King's refusal - since they certainly
expected that considerable ~~subsidies~~ ^{subsidies} of gold &
pieces should be within the limits of their Charter
others who were under their direction, would be
undertaken - that the (to be) would be pleased
to authorize the King [to engage conquer
possess & ruin the land everywhere both
under certain limits ^{with} ~~with~~ ^{at sea or land}, with
the ~~force~~ force the ^{with his blessing} land, under the authority of
S.G. that which and ^{commission} for (to be)
both same will be granted, in order to give the
same without ships destined to the district of the

1688 Charter. is also to transmit them to the other British
 with equal brevities with distributed share, ^{as decided} before
 which being deliberated in Grand Court ^{to be} ~~to be~~
 hereby to consent to the other request: & the other
 is hereby authorized ^{to attach - accordingly} ~~on to~~ ~~in~~ ~~order~~
 in identical terms as above

(no of 24 Resol 1688)

Notes from Bloks "Psychicities v h Nederland: Vol 1" vol V. :

Wth scilicet (2nd time) from the British to England 11 Nov 1688.
 France or Torbay, 14th. (pp. 356-364).

"... na de overname van Engeland had koudewijk in November
 eindelijk ook den Staten den oorlog verklaard, zoo het heette
 alleen wegens den steun aan zijne vijanden in de Keulse
 zaken verleend; de oorlogsverklaring was eerst in het begin
 van Maart 1689 door de Staten bij manifest aangenomen
 "ter verdediging van gods dienst en vrijheid" tegen het
 fransche geweld. (p 389).

1689.

Read 23. 1689.

[29. 65].

18 January 1689

BAC.

It is ordered read the Memorandum in his own best
 & he. re. with that the two & rest of 22 Decr last
 had pleased to resolve that Acorda should provisionally be
 referred to the B. P. C. the claims are of damage suffered &
 interest ^{should} be referred to the Commissioners to be perused with two days.
 or with three days ^{of that} that the two of W.C. should
 be written to the Commissioners to be perused with two days
 about it by the B. P. C. both of the Commissioners to be perused
 resolution of Acorda & to request the Commissioners to be perused with two days
 of Acorda & perused with two days that the Commissioners to be perused
 be perused with two days : that the Commissioners to be perused
 executed themselves on the perused that the Commissioners to be perused
was to be perused : Resolved : that the Commissioners to be perused
was to be perused with two days that the Commissioners to be perused
with two days that the Commissioners to be perused
 of the Commissioners to be perused with two days : Resolved that the Commissioners to be perused
with two days : Resolved that the Commissioners to be perused with two days
that the Commissioners to be perused with two days that the Commissioners to be perused
with two days that the Commissioners to be perused with two days : Resolved that the Commissioners to be perused

168929 January 1689.

§.

à Caracou & Arriens

16 Feb^r 1689

Rec'd de la part des J.C. de Pas de Zeland
de Luburg 16^e Feb^r - ad^{re} D^s Or of 18^e
Jan resol: of 22 Dec^r on what the laws of
one would be respect des p. civile des lois
to comply with same. - les verol.

§ April 1689.

Rec'd de la part des J.C. de Pas de Zeland
de Luburg 6 April. with P of D de Arriens of 2^e
on 9^e for 10 May 1689. de Luburg - Appl.
subject to draft heads being: one more by the Council
with Regie de Appl. — ...

[SB 5787. P of D (as above) § 10.

§ 2 - by copies to Arriens

BAC

§ 3. The respice des are also requested fully
to instruct & charge their depts on what means

measures, the diffes between Ches' n^d B.A. (by both
 a respects ^{handing over} of Accada & ^{for} ~~the~~ ^{other claims or other}
~~claims~~ ^{side} ~~is~~ ^{is} ~~is~~ ^{is} ~~is~~ ^{is} ~~is~~ ^{is} ~~is~~ ^{is} ~~is~~ ^{is}
 1689 shall be taken in hand & settled.

§4. To certify Accada ^{land} ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~
 shall be ^{to} ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~

§5. Order of vacant places in Gold Coast Accrao -
 Surman on ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~ ~~land~~

2nd May 1689
 Acca memo for Va. ^{estate} ~~estate~~ ~~estate~~ ~~estate~~ ~~estate~~ ~~estate~~ ~~estate~~ ~~estate~~ ~~estate~~ ~~estate~~
 thro' will ^{to} ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ^{of} ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~
 before the ^{of} ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ^{of} ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~ ~~of~~

BAC

3rd May 1689.

Resolved to write to Pres Ch. Zealand - ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~ ~~to~~

BAC

31 May 1689.

Is it ~~the~~
 X. having ~~been~~

BAC

1688

1689

line, on 13 July June & her i de Roque.
 & consequently to deliberate upon de eyes of Toledo.
 whole was manner & [vide P.D. §3]... ..;
 as also that same de ride of W.C. with
 de jejen wordige occasie raas warden
 of resonator with eloquence of Peccada;
 & further that Toledo would accept same
 for info & connect same to the Va best
 for the: & Clerk of Mary. order to prevent
 from conflicts - Copy of memo to the V.D.
 for info acc'dly.

1689

30 June 1689

~~Annals of the King of Spain~~

B.P.M.S.

France

Good memo for the W.C. [orig has no date nor address]
 that they were at present engaged in examining
 suitable means for intervention of their provinces within
 district of Charter against ^{invasions} ~~invasions~~ already,
 & still to be undertaken by King of France - and
 ask that Toledo will please to afford her the
 assistance pursued in section of Art 40 of
 Charter - ... to consider that if the said King
 previous for Gold Coast of Guinea not made
 returns it was to be feared that the Coast

were to our advantage by land while we sleep. & as
reports says persons in America
says for sure that West of Cook says for ^{future} ~~present~~ ~~use~~.
copy also to be in the ~~the~~ says for affairs of WRC
to see & report thereon

6 July 1689.

Acid to the Director of Ships written at the City of BAC.
Heldorf was Haysenworth Haysenworth 26 with
hundred [letters?] credited of for the Navle
in order to bring before the two sides ~~was~~ between
WRC & BAC. — Declared that Navle acceptable to Boston.

13 July 1689.

It read at Assembly seems to have been the best & Navle BAC.
a restitution of Fort Accada or unanction of Arbitrators
for settlement of their offices between WRC & BAC.
& follows: — In the same date the 13 July 1689.
they refer to the result: of 22 Dec 1688 & 15 Jan ^{18 Jan} &
& the last & in effect will that the order in them may
be promptly carried out — Copy to be in the & a copy for affairs
of WRC to see, confer with the of WRC expected has this evening
& report.

1689

BAC

18 July 1689.

My report is as above that they heard that Mrs
W.C. had undertaken to send across presentation of her
Acadia by way of ship sailing thence & broad duplicate
of same by ship late last about August. resolved that
Mrs W.C. at the Zealand be allowed to see that this
was done without fail or delay.

BAC

21 July 1689. (dupd Joh Altitarius)

Recd of from Mrs W.C. - wd. forqual is 24/5/89
of letters: - "The Mrs of W.C. find themselves obliged
to request to y^r Honors how far are please to find
good by resolution of 30 June 1689, now 2 years ago,
that should be represented wth the Diet of place
: the best & ^{most suitable} manner the wrong done to
W.C. by the usurpation of part is now on behalf
of W.C. by her servants on P.C. of G. on the
kill Manro, was caused by them just there:
at Acadia & also Terceira as these places
belong to ^{France or were} subject to of W.C. that this had
been done a time of peace or good friendship in spite
of & regardless of protests made by on behalf of W.C.
to these servants: & therefore that y^r Honors could have no
or expectation for the redress which should be

of 18th Oct. that that he would have done as much as possible
- is a resolution of 30 June 1687.

From which resolution it has been hoped to have
obtained the effect: but ~~unfortunately~~, find certain reports
report that that sum is given in favour of the less
resolution in case of the W.C. also is determined
in favour of the B.A.C. on that the same instance

daily, ~~verly~~ a week still is given. and of such
that the same good of the maintenance of the
the whole of the year the right of W.C. or
E.C. of S. the which describe the case of B.A.C.

in favour of the W.C. obtain the sum of the
of the same to be maintained. and the
free see that the office is not 39 of Charter which
shall be to help come,

Refus. : that of them may be pleased of such officers
means a shall be most be given to let the W.C. obtain
the effect of of the year of 30 June 1687. that the
W.C. being obliged for maintenance of them of so that
standing of the year is sufficient and they are
may open one of them enjoy it the year which have
will now or then by the B.A.C. ... — Copy that to
the the the other days for officers of W.C. to be report.

1689.

5 Sept 1689.

BAC

After previous deliberation it is found good that Sirs of
W.C. at Pres: Mr Zealand shall be instructed
to send some deputies hither in 10 days time which
will be 12 of each new style in order to visit & attend
the Territories on the affairs between W.C. & M.C.
in order that sd affairs may be entirely removed out of the way.

15th Sept 1689.

BAC

Recd a Letter from Charles of Blenheim written in the Field after
by Overwasselinge on 12 Aug last. containing that Mr
Barthe his Counselor for Sea of Marine had reported
within Doctor, that the W.C. had so far violated the
1st part of the former resolution of 21 Decr 1688.
by which they were enjoined to restore Fort Records,
upon the way among which had been despatched,
1688. ∴ with doubting that sd orders would be duly
executed: That sd Doctor had also hoped &
trusted that the 2nd Point of the Resolution — in which
had been ordered that the mutual claims of damage
Kollen & interests should be brought into an arbitration
of 4 mutual arbitrators — would also have been
fulfilled: otherwise had Barthe, with without great

surprise

behrensinge, dat het dit werk tot daaraan mangende
^{quo} was noot difficult was wode oles it: dat deuse de
docten mede with uclaten legunet te steren thin (to the
dat is de conferance held on 18 July past: in the presence
of boters deys had been vorgelecten belien de gewonacht lize
of his other book toys dat into so arbitratorische danda
bebrongt 15th de points which his African Coy had
specifid in their printed Deductie, handed to the bois of heere Coy
immediatly after holding of the Cause 7 2 volz de damage
which his Coy had suffered: dat de liden is 90 flings
had been troubled by the liden to and 3rdly de
damage which de heere Coy had caused by de liden
of ship "Berlin": that de present de
had WC is ^{de 3^{de} die} of Ordende van de of d personen of sprak
oersted to sustain dat de of d Resol: of 22 Decr 1688
shoud be relative to an other resol: of 30 June 1687
from which, according to their Compromis, woud follow
dat heere Coy niet alle de vorty punten, als van
de welke eenige door de vorty Resol: of febr 1687
werden geexcludeert, ^{sonde mogen in} ^{compromis} ^{bringen}
bringen; ^{en} ^{justicing} in allepro cases thin to the
and their of d last resolution like actually one hence
desol, loore niet behoorlyk nodrückt te willen loorden
7 niet that present paper erpsh thin so WC.

been
 door hem aan wyken dat derselve sich aan dat
 op de zyde van hoogst gedachten Elector
 seprojectieerde, op het samsde werck en bylegging
 van alle daer by komende stuydingen
 gericht zijde Compromise en behoren
 accommoderende selyck mede de samsde sooth
 best uoyelyck verhaarsiden ~~in~~ ~~de~~ in
 rechtigheyd brachten: — legz of dese
 wraen Va Emeren rōi totter desz la affais
 of W.C. te wie s'upersdieren.

21 September 1689.

[Koud memo te bis W.C. en memo of 18 may 1688.
 en Annulo - ons in 5984.]

12 November 1689.

BAC. Is At Annulo, eod memo van memo van brief
 & Breve requeste dat - wie 1784-Bladin of B,
 in way appd de desz compromise drawn up by
 dese & de H.C. ood authentic memo v D R.
 te hie de same - in totter was be pleased
 worden te bis of W.C. memo hie desz
 de wraen de better so dat de of dat compromise nite

le gesso g'perfectement a iride. - Copy (what is this)
WTC et Pas. Ch Zealand & several instructed towns some
deputies fully instructed Richer on 21st inst to terminate
on the said matter.

23 November 1689.

Recd memo le bis of WTC re above recd: offering for
postponement of our own to Assembly of 8 - offer
promised postponement for no longer than 14 days.

30 November 1689

Recd memo le bis WTC Pas Ch. Hunt - re Assembly -
[orig in PB 5/87.]

15 Decr 1689.

Recd memo le bis WTC - a same subject - [ditto].

St

1690

St Resol: 1690. [St 652.]

21 January 1690.

[Read remonstrance to W.C. as Amicus [orig. St 5184].]

3 Feb 1690.B.A.C.

Is read at Council, then in the House of Commons, and the dispute between the respective African Coys of the 1st & 2nd State was staiden like determined by a Compromis like signed by deputies of in the state treated by Arbitrators under the help of the Hon. Mr. de la Roche, who 1st & 2nd had direct power commanding Jan Rey Spanishman de Paula de Lange to be a witness of the said Compromis for purposes which and, so-called in House: he is as the in a point of Precedence - which granted - letter of Precedence

11th March 1690

B.A.C.

In Enquiry for Tolles app to affairs of allc.
law referred to Assembly Act, between the
"amalgamation" of the En Act W.C. the
ambassadors of B.A.C. i.e. Tolles Resol of
22 Decr 1688. In the termination of these
diffcos, was arranged to purchase the
Compromis inserted at the end of this & dot turn
Tolles approval who same was copyd.

- aftd Compromis aftd ^{by Tolles} at Tolles and paper bills
re despatches.

To receive follow papers. On the day 15th March
1690 appeared before me Adam van Swaigh ...
notary on S. envelope. Colletti's report
by Gorb. Beckmann Pub not Pub.

[Vide photos for SB private thro W.C. 15]
photostats of the Compromis in Dungtalen
[Berlin pamphlet] Photo. no 2.]

27 June 1690

- Resol re Amanto -

4 July 1690

- bills -

bills on 27 July.

20 Sept 1690.

BAC. Recd letter from Sirs WTC Pas des Anz de
14th Oct. - proposing the Ordinaries
Alletus Tolling & Abraham van den Ende
both under of Trust as Arbitrators to w^{ch} Gronowius
vice Hertzog & Brewer. - Applicants
app'd to Holuo. w^{ch} to Swetman Swetman
Minister of Closter of Mens. In approval of 14th Oct
to applicants.

17 Oct 1690

to sending orders to Arbitrators -

BAC.

(Schmettau) 24 Oct 1690
Swetman's app^t passed over Elects' approval of
app^ts of Tolling & van den Ende & Arbitrators

2 Nov 1690

& Name
with order to Swetman

BAC. Swetman's app^t to beys of Holuo w^{ch} w^{ch} had send orders
to Arbitrators. Tolling & van den Ende for WTC.
& Edward's Hendrick Klock & Ingens Sonnemans for BAC.

30 November 1690

Gold Cont

Recd letter from Genl W.C. (w.d) dat as per the enclosed
Letters & copies to inform Genl W.C. the general service
of W.C. required that by place should be provided of an intell
ant capable & ^{able person} ~~habitual person~~ who had a knowledge of $\frac{1}{2}$
by word of 2 ^{last} ~~last~~ ^{appt} ~~appt~~ ^{to} ~~to office a good run on the
C of G. Africa & Guinea appt the person of Joel Smith
who was personally acquainted with the affairs in that
country requesting the law to grant sd JS & Commission
over & above the Genl Commission. - Grant of Commission
appt -~~

1691

Resol: 28 1691 [29 653].

14 March 1691.

Recd Co Letters WRC Pas ch Trust ad q^l ^{30th day} 1691
 with Points of Delib: P. Circumstances of 8 15th day 1691.
 - Points of Delib subject Trust resol: any Trust over
 P. of Del of 28.

[28 5786.] P. of D. (28 P.)

[of great business letters of Trust with 28 Trust]

Resolutions of Trust are on April 20.25 /
 Aug 21. / Sep 13.15 / Oct 5.11 25.26 / Dec 16/.

Trust 2 Resolutions of 22 & 24 Oct re petition from
Benjamin Trust "Merchant residing at Rotterdam"

1692.

Resolutions 29. 1692

[29 6574]

2nd August 1692.

Gold Coast
[English &
Dutch]

Being exhibited in the Assembly a ^{Paper} ~~Journal~~ ^{xi.} ~~of~~ ^{vide p.}
 Councils from the Royal English African Co^y and bod ^{55th post}
 treatment which had been done to the English ^{about}
Antigua Cabo Verde by or on behalf of the East India
Company is, after previous deliberation ^{resolved} ^{in the} ^{General} ^{Assembly}
 that they should be sent to West India ^{at} ^{the}
^{Amsterdam} ^{their} ^{report} ^{to} ^{the} ^{West India} ^{Company}.

6 September 1692.

Read the letter from West India ^{of} ^{the} ^{2nd inst}
 reading ~~report~~ ^{is} ^{the} ^{report} ^{of} ^{the} ^{2nd inst},
 their reports ... Resolves that ^{the} ^{report} ^{of} ^{the} ^{2nd inst} ^{be} ^{placed} ⁱⁿ ^{hands} ^{of} ^{the} ^{West} ^{India} ^{Company}
 be placed in hands of West India ^{at} ^{the}
 be placed in hands of West India ^{at} ^{the} ^{report} ^{of} ^{the} ^{2nd inst}.

[29. 6588] →

50.

1692.

[S^{rs} 5488. original for him for WRC. to S^r.

signed by Joh Allensius, at no date;

undated per 6 Sept 1692. :-

Gold Coast
English &
Dutch

copy of WRC de Pas des Anst^{es} ^{collige rest of S^rs}
rest of ^{2nd Copy} ^{in accordance therewith. Affirmation}
... of 1692 ^{of 1692}

Such sd ^{Paper} ^{Writings} [cont^s ^{the} ^{contents} ^{of} 2 ^{pts.}

Exp^{te} Mr Co. ^{containing 3 Points}

Aguatto ^{is the} ^{Kingdom} ^{of} Aguafo ^{de} ^{English} ^{lawe}

had as old ^{places} ^{of} ^{Trade} ^{or} ^{factories}
as at any place ^{where} ^{such} ^{places}
of Africa ^{had} ^{been} ^{conferred}
by ^{former} ^{Capitulations} ^{with} ^{King} [&] ^{Governors} ^{of}
these countries ^{since} ^{the} ^{year} ¹⁶⁹¹ ^{the} ^{Articles}

between the King of Aguafo & de tunc, the
Exp^{te} Agent & Council of Cabo Corso ^{had} ^{been} ^{restored}
goodness ^{of} ^{Customs} ^{must} ^{be} ^{paid} ^{providing} ^{that} ^{the} ^{dues}
of ^{importation} ^{be} ^{paid} ^{within} ^{the} ^{terms}

to that King & his Chiefs (Kudluayan), ^{and}
they were also ^{restored}
encouragement ^{was} ^{given} ^{to} ^{the} ^{English}
to fortify ^{themselves} ^{and} ^{the} ^{English} ^{to} ^{the} ^{English}
as they should find good

And that they had continued that trade till the year 1687

Lastly that three of the Spaniards in the year 1688 had hired
some ^{up-country people} ~~Spaniards~~, named Cufferers who had come
down & destroyed (~~the~~) the Union
of Aguaflo & the people thereof, as also that Felera (Felera)
whose wife it was to succeed in the said things
place had fled to the English at Coto Corso,
& had given them as much ^{money} "security" as the
nature of the "obligation" of these countries could
afford with assurance that the English Factory
& Comando should be ^{restored again} ~~restored~~ & that

also since that dissolution of the Union of
Aguaflo by the Cufferers the W.C. had begun
to build a strong fort at Comando & of.

And finally that in December last the British ^{English} General
at St. Lucia had prevented the English
restoration of Comando that the English flag
had been seized by his servants from the house
built by the English; as also that the Factor & servants
of the R. A. C. of England had been compelled to

abandon their dwelling place that the Gen. Lints
had worked ^{build up} that the English Coys Factor Factor
should not ^{transport} of the house of the port was also annoyed
Common to fortify the same & which had been established
thereby they had been established

1692

of the Trade of Commodo.

sense as a preliminary
 Upon which shall shortly & ^{expressly} discuss that the WTC. -
 at the time this State was at war with the Kings of
 Spain & Portugal - acquired by gift of arms
 Various places outside Europe ^{possessed} by the said Kings,
 & amongst others also on the C. of G. where they have
 successively ^{established} themselves & made their
 former acquisition ^{in confirmed} by Acts & Agreements
 with the ^{Native} inhabitants in that country & in special
 also in the Kingdom of Nyuffo.

And finally in the year 1641 when Jacob Nynglauser
 was ^{an afterwards} ~~by~~ ⁱⁿ the year 1659 when on the
 Sept 4th the King of Spain of the British Nyuffo or
Commodo ^{the} ^{land} ^{there} ^{is} ^{the} ^{King} ^{of} ^{Spain} ^{has} ^{been} ^{transferred} ^{to} ^{the} ^{WTC.} ^{without} ^{losing} ^{they}
 handed over ^{and} transferred to the ^{WTC.} ^{without} ^{losing} ^{they}
 was ^{referred} ^{to} ^{the} ^{WTC.} ^{without} ^{losing} ^{they}
 having ^{been} ^{referred} ^{to} ^{the} ^{WTC.} ^{without} ^{losing} ^{they}

to allow any other nation a people ^{whenever} ^{by} ^{will}
 or ^{to} ^{build}
 as, any steede or place ^{where} ^{to} ^{build}
 houses, ^{or} ^{any} ^{other} ^{thing}
 contrary to the ^{acquired} ^{right} ^{of} ^{the} ^{WTC.}

It being ^{being} ^{clearly} ^{intended} ^{that} ^{the} ^{said} ^{King} ^{of} ^{Spain} ^{has} ^{been} ^{transferred} ^{to} ^{the} ^{WTC.} ^{without} ^{losing} ^{they}
 & ^{the} ^{King} ^{of} ^{Spain} ^{has} ^{been} ^{transferred} ^{to} ^{the} ^{WTC.} ^{without} ^{losing} ^{they}

1692. Plog staff is now to erect the lodge that they had already
 let the Plog fly but that it had been ^{hauled down} on horse gear
 by the negroes, ^{de English} before they had been there 3 days
 then Abe Tagui & Jar Cobesse with their adherents
 had made the English depart by force & flight with
 persons taken in excess of 100 fallen to the ground to 2

With which the British respectfully request of the
 Govt of the W.C. may be maintained & of the Govt in Paris
 suitable rights & persons to be at the disposal
 of Aquaflo & Comenda Beach ^{so directed} in the hope that
 what that water may be ^{dear} ^{business} ^{gaining}
 benefit that they may not be involved in their
 trade in the future.

Annex: 1. Copy of the Act of Cession of Comenda beach
 dated 8 Sept 1659 [a.v. Sub anno].
Annex: 2.

Annex: 2 extracts from letters to the Hon^{ble} Secy
 letters W.C. & Council of I
 Hon^{ble} Secy & Hon^{ble} Secy / on the 9th Dec 17
 obtained news / believe news from the factor at Com^{any} that had arrived
 there as English factor with his soldiers, Plog &
 Plog staff is now to erect the lodge ^{rect} ² ^{dodge} ^{shed} ^{already}
 let the Plog fly due ^{at} ^{but} ^{it} ^{was} ^{hauled} ^{down} ^{on} ^{horse} ^{gear} ^{of} ^{the}
 negroes; before they had been there three days

Abe
Abe Taqui & San Cobese with their calumny had made the
 English despatch by force ^{because that nation lives so badly}
 with the Futius ^{on that day notice was published}
 with the Palate ^{by whose help they have in the year}
 1664 ^{they had deprived the Co of} the post of Calo
Cors. Secondly also that the Gentlemen English Robert
Samuel Humfrids had bilked de Zabos & [Humfrids]
Francise to make war on the Futius & Communes
stidily to ruin which would certainly have succeeded
 if de Futius had not been ^{assisted} assisted
 by his Sukerts "re" which would re
 (150) Jal Smith

Munis this 8th Feb 1692.

[H En 6932 (Main England)].

The following paper written in English &
 is in the file but no use to it can be found as of the use
 of it correspondence ^{on this file either} from King was re; the English Envoy & Secretary
Secretary or the Secretary of Bede in England.

The paper is not signed nor dated, & is damaged
 at the edges & top.

1692. book - "Case of the Royal African Company"

h^{ad}: Section of 2 Aug^r 1692.

Gold Coast

English &
Dutch

[Spelling has been
anglicized]

f
"The Case of the Royal African Company of
England & Trade usage the Case of
Cote d'Or with the British Emperor
of Castle Del Mina on the Gold Coast of in
Africa"

Ra(?)

At Commenda in the Kingdom of Aquaffo the
English have had as ancient a settlement for Trade as
as of any place which they have on the Coast of
Africa, & such settlement both has confirmed
by severall ~~the~~ Capitulations with the Kings & Emper^{ors}
of that Country, and in the year 1681, Articles between
the then King of Aquaffo the English Agent &
Councell of Cabo Corsoe in beholfe of the
Company were revised, & the Customs to be paid
payd by the English to y^e King & his great
men were reestablished, and all usefull
regulations, encouragements given to the English there,
to perf^{orm} as they should think good.

At de sayd Comenda de English have kept such
factories with goods and flora as they found the
Country & de peace thereof required. Also with
shipping de sayd Company have enjoyed trade all
along the Coast on this side deir ~~factories~~ factories,
where they have for Gold sold great quantities of
English Manufactures, without contestation, untill the
year 1687, when de French seeking for trade along
de Coast with four men of Warre, where they might settle,
could only prevail with de King of Aquaffo, who
suffered de French to have a small house & to
hoist up the French Kings flagg at Comenda,
which is one of the most considerable places in Africa
for the trade of Gold. The Dutch having likewise
a factory at Comenda not far from de English
factory, & within a few miles thereof ^{two leagues} deir
Del Mina Castle, de Governour thereof sent to de
English African Companys chief Merchant at Cabo
Corral to joyn with them to expell the French
off de Gold Coast, who returned for answer, that if
de French should encroach on de English ~~priviledges~~
priviledges on the Coast they would demand from the
French satisfaction, untill then they would not comply with his
request, de two Crowns being being then in Alliance.

[Tafel]

In the year 1688 the first kind of upland paper
called the English was first made & designed

the said language of English the paper used,

so that the King was his own master, & all

from several de Page & Falena where

paper it was to succeed King (sic), that is

of English or Cato (also, & gave the

English as well known as the nature of

the English orthography can say, and

an assurance that the English factory of

Comanda should be settled. And a list

of English words which the ... (am) or Cato

Cato with a Table and other papers with

good ... Table of Comanda, with a Table

of Table and other words & ... Table of the Table

offer, at the time of the Table ... words

of Table Table Table Table Table Table

Comanda, which the Table used up in the year of

Shang in every instance in Table. And with

the Table used in Table, dated the 11th January

last came de Table Table Table Table

of the Table Table or de Table in Table

1692

The English resettlement of Comenda, notwithstanding the present
Kings' Inhibition to them, vnder by the said Smiths' reward
the English Flagg was pulled down off the house, built by the
English on their ground formerly purchased, & the Factor and
servants of the Royall African Company of England, were
compelled to leave their habitation there, and upon demand
after made of the sayd Smiths, why he disturbed the English
Companys servants, he answered, the Companys Factors should
not build up the house, or fort, or bring Guns to fortify fortifie it,
whereupon the English Companys Agents made their Protest
on the 4th December 1691 against the said Jall Smiths
for damages &c. as at large read is to be perused &c. [sic]

So that at present the Dutch have deprived the English
of the Trade at Comenda, which is the cheife part of
Affrica for Gold & the sale of English Manufactures.

Resolutions & Articles on July 12 / 29 / Aug 4. 23 / Sep 10. 19 /
Nov 8. 18. 27 / Decr 12. 16. 31 / 1692

1693.

29. Resol 1693

[29. 655]

4 June 1693

Recd G^r from W^m W^m for the same and 2^d with
with P of Delib for Assembly of X at 11th on 23
for 24th June. Off^r to draft minutes
of Assembly has submitted for approval of W^m.

[295786.

P of Deliberation (29 11).

§ 2 The committee to P^rince is to send a note to G^r
in the due.

[Caracao Surinam &c]

§ 7. — To ascertain disputes to determine ^{or solve} ^{or conclude}
or report same to the arbitration between W^m & P^r.
(since Assembly of X of 30 June 1692)

§ 8. is trade & goods in light of rain & etc -

§ 10 Off^r of G^r. is to send to J^oel Smith who has asked for his discharge.

30 June 1693.

Gold Coast

Recd to him from W.C. asking for Commission ^{of approval} ^{rather of affairs}
of Joan Scott as her Gen. and Ch. Const. of Africa &
Gambia in place of San Duint who has ^{retired} ^{for his discharge}
- Cause to issue -

(The form of oath which is her Letter, supra, is headed -
Oath for Joan Scott aff'd on 18 July 1693

by her deputy for W.C. to be for Gen. and Ch.
Const. of Africa beginning by Rio Sierra Leone
or along the aforesaid Coast as far as to 80°
Latitude, south of the Equinoctial Line
San Duint degrees south of the Equinoctial line
near the Islands situate on the said Coast
under the direction of S. (over.)

20 November 1693.

B. A. C.

Mrs. Walter Schmeitau

Is at Amsterd. recd. a Memo from Mr. Smeltman &
Muni of H.B.C. Director of Blough re decision of arbitrators
over certain affairs between W.C. & B.A.C. as follows:-
[The hand] dat de Haye 19 Jun 1693.

The undersigned Muni of H.B.C. the Gen. of Blough, has
orders to represent to W.C. that in pursuance of the compromise of
1 March 1690 ... the arbitrators chosen by both parties, after
"a pleine et suffisante connoissance de cause, avance"

1699.

as much as possible a desire of the Blug Coy. &
 much as the other by the opposing party, "comme aussi
^{après} ~~après~~ un accommodement a l'amiable tant^{que}
 en vain par les dits Arbitres non obstant ~~est~~
 the Blug Coy. valent donner les mains a
 des conditions, tant soit peu raisonnables, ils n'ont
 enfin prononcé qu'un arrest interlocutoire a la
 place d'un definitif, comme V. l. P. verraient,
 s'il leur plaît, plus amplement par la copie
cy jointe * [~~est une copie de~~ 6125/6 ?]

[*
 vide
 p. 79 post]

dont la substance est: That de said Arbitrators
 are of opinion that they have not been sufficiently
 authorized to pronounce definitively on the said differences
 "avant que les parties ayent préalablement ^{éclairci} ~~clairci~~
 et étendu les dits Comprois & cotes qui en
 dependent, de telle maniere que les Arbitres, ayant
 pouvoir d'examiner dans cette décision de juger
 en l'ice même touchant les prétensions sur le droit
 & sur la possession, tant de la Compy Afric: as Blug, que
 de ~~cette~~ ^{celle} des W.C. dans les Places telles
 qu'elles soient, situées on de C. of G. and their dependances,
 "sans que néanmoins par la, ou par la décision qui
 en sera faite suit & suivra, il puisse être tiré la
 moindre illation ou conséquence pour l'assertion ^{assertion} ou

of ~~letters~~ éclaircissement of which they believe they have
 need for the decision of so differ^{ent} "unforeseen" and de comparis.
 These who have jurisdiction at the Cor de Blang being
 ready & authorized to do the same in the name of their
^{principals.}
 This will be the only way to bring this matter
 to a final end otherwise de fader "factures suites"
 that they can have if, unless to all attempts & after
 tant de demarches faites & inutiles jusqu'à ici,,
 justice was refused to the Cor of Blang.

— Resolved to summon de Arbitrators to Hague for
 30th inst to upon (letters of) decisions why they ^{are of opinion} ~~are of opinion~~
~~they cannot~~ ^{cannot} give their definitive ^{with proof} ~~with proof~~ decision
 of its kind who ^{sent to the Director, W.C. Prud'homme Chamber Amsterdam} ~~sent to the Director, W.C. Prud'homme Chamber Amsterdam~~
 in two days here ^{on that day, or} ~~on that day, or~~ ^{authorize} ~~authorize~~ their
 Procureur to be heard by their HO. Mr's deputies on the subject
 of ^{the} ~~the~~ ^{last} ~~last~~ ^{of the} ~~of the~~ ^{of this} ~~of this~~
 Resolution ^{Mrs de Schmittau} ~~Mrs de Schmittau~~ ^{is info.} ~~is info.~~

Stevens Verbot for letters de p's Office of W.C.
 being requested to proceed with the ^{discussions in that subject} ~~discussions in that subject~~

20th December, 1693

Received report of Resident Pensionaries Requesters for the two days
 of affairs of W.C. i.e. as Resol of 20th ulto — before
 ... before which, resolved that before proceeding
 first to assign treatment, de Arbitrators be written to

once more to use their utmost endeavours
 and ~~to~~ ~~conclude~~ ~~the~~ ~~most~~ ~~expedient~~ ~~decision~~
 to ... settle the matter - be it, ^{contrary to hope,} ~~it~~ ~~is~~ ~~not~~ ~~what~~ ~~they~~ ~~thought~~
 the parties counsel of see the to infer (to be) order
 both have resolved upon in law. - (to) of (his) herod. (to) (be) de
^{Stettin}
^{Smallman} Pa his wife.

Resolutions re Athens on Jan 24. 26. 28 /
 Aug 14. 24. 28. 29 / Oct 10. 28 / Nov 28.
 1699.

1694

Resol: 29 1694 (29 658)

9 Janary 1694

BAC.

[Orig: 6
: 29
5/186]

Resolved at Assembly th memoire Ben Lewis Clerk
 Arvan den Linden, Willem Buys Meesters Sommans
 Arbitrators ... dot der icw Resol of 2 Dec dot
 they have tried all appropriate means taking the
 steps to ~~an~~ of the Buys to ^{friendly} ~~amicably~~ accord
 but ... their efforts have been fruitless - Resolved to
 write to Arbitrators ^{agree} to make one more attempt ^{get the parties to} ~~in accordance~~
 the ^{to inform} ~~parties~~ members & an ^{failure} ~~abstention~~ ~~is~~ ~~to~~
 transfer ^{order} (to be) ~~order~~ then to be disposed upon.

14 Janary 1684.

BAC.

[to 60]

Resolved at Assembly read ~~to be done above~~ the memoire above -
 dot Resol 12 Janary reporting icw Resol of 9th Janary that
 their former efforts have been fruitless ~~with an view~~ accord with
 needed & that they do not wish that they can offer
 their former efforts will fruit - upon which Buys delibated
 Resol of Part of (Holl & W) ~~the~~ ~~land~~ have taken over

copy of so the whole for communication in their own. solution.

16 January 1694

B.A.C.

W. de Schmettau
L. van Schmettau

Is at Assembly read de memoire from
Minister of the Dept of Bling re apices between W.C. & B.A.C.
[- here]

copy in
B.A.C.

On the memoire of the undersigned Minister
of 1694 Dept of Bling of 19 January last, it pleased of H.M. to
after having heard the report of the Arbitrators relative to
"terminate the difference between the B.A.C. & W.C. to
"reconsider their orders, & see that the 3 Arbitrators should
employ all their ^{"Sprints"} to terminate the matter by an
"accommodation" & in default thereof, they had to make
in pursuance whereof ^{of the} ~~Arbitrators~~ ^{held} ~~had~~ ^{held}
derechef report to of H.M. After the Arbitrators had ^{held}
well confer with de two parties & had done every thing possible to
obtain the conclusion of an accommodation. ^{The} ^{CO} ~~the~~ ^{CO} ~~of~~ ^{of} ~~Bling~~ ^{of} ~~of~~
"à donner les mains en toute entendeur ayant relâché
relâché ^{relâché} de ses grandes a bien fondées fondées prétentions
qui passent la somme de cinq. thousand d'or, jusqu'à
celle de ^m ₁₅₀ ft. à quoy monte le compte des deux
dommage effectivement souffert avec regard to de
two "deux" "Waterbord" & "Berlin" avec ~~de~~ ^{quelque}
"qui" a été pris by de sd W.C. et remettant
même au pouvoir of sd Arbitrators de moderer ^{encore} ~~more~~

1694

cette somme s'ils y travaient a rendre.
 The WTC instead of making a reasonable offer
 to the waterers demand les deux millions
 but later on ^[lantern] & reciller the dispute on the
 right & justice, contrary to the true gain
 of the Compagnie, ^{ne} touchant que la partie
 time by its ^{es} difficulties & delays. Pour
 abuser ^{abuser} on a passé outre du côté of the
 Coy of Burg declarans dot on se retoucherait
 a $\frac{m}{125}$ fl. which if the WTC would offer
 $\frac{m}{80}$ fl. on remettrait le différent to the arbitral
 decision of the arbiters. The Coy of Burg.
 avait raison de croire dot elle des Indes
 embresserait avec d'autant plus de promptitude
 des favorable offer que dot de Arbitrators ^{même}
 travaient dot de damage effectivement suffered
 by the Coy of Burg dans les dits articles, sans
 compter dot de Coy of ^{Indes} a profité seven years
 de ce capital, alloit par son un compte le
 plus ~~deux~~ heureux a $\frac{m}{85}$ fl. But all de
 peines have been lost a cet regard de WTC.
 n'a voulu ni mettre les Arbitres a etat
 de decider cette affaire a suivy celle de
 Burg s'est offert ^{Suivant} le dit memoire

peines

1694

rembourser

accions pour se rembourser sur elle des lades
 d'un Capital aussi considerable dont elle a voulu
 profiter par des voyes violentes & sans admittre
 les des diffence est soit terminee par celles
 de douceur dont elle meime est tombee
 d'accord. Le mandement Vicinitor always

leses des q' l'us words ^{accuser} with U.S.A.
 in preceding to firmest such lockers consequences
 between their respective subjects. what with the example
 of their Decrees has now reason to live together
 especialey in the present conjuncture. in good
 union & friendship born of de Hope this (p. 1)
 January 1694 / (190) G. de Schmettau.

Commissar being deliberated de Pays le Part of Wall &
 W. Holland of Island have taken our copy of so many
 lots pour commensated which in des lades to their members

BAC

15^e février 1974

Bien

ambassadeur

... ~~Il faut que l'ambassadeur de la République~~ soit en mesure de donner une réponse satisfaisante à la demande de l'ambassadeur de la République

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

Le fait de diffuser ces informations, qui sont de nature à nuire à la sécurité nationale, est considéré comme une violation de la loi

1694

which was appointed directly, which have been reserved & kept out of the sd. Compromise And that also clearly within 6 mo int' s'p'ook occur'd to value with the best advice may be made for America a model of as yet a portion of ~~inter Coz~~ claimed by inter Coz 6000 of old floes.

- And so was the compromise ratified by the Ho mo of H. B. of Brandenburg which on 200 Sept 1693, an introductory int' s'p'ook was done by 50 Arbitrators without

Quote Terminating the matter in principle - ~~Refer to~~ His resolution of 10th Feby 1694 (the first) the year (1694) -

Precedence will which Resol of 1 Feby the Arbitrators on 16 Feby 1694 gave their final ^{decision} int' s'p'ook in manner as books in copy books annexed *.

* Vide the photostat of the "Decisio" (in ms) in Dingtalem [Berlin pamphlet] photo n. 206]

And as it has please of Ho mo of Brandenburg given to the Compromise [the final compromise]

ratification

~~Having the best especially request. Not the approval of the final decision, both of the old final int' s'p'ook in Brandenburg and the Ho mo of H. B. of Brandenburg may be issued under authority of the Ho mo of Brandenburg and approval ratification - but of the Ho mo of H. B. of Brandenburg and such with the special clause that~~

under. To same ^{not} ~~are~~ ~~with~~ ~~included~~ ~~the~~ ~~provisions~~ ~~over~~ ~~claiming~~ ~~about~~
let ^{negate} ~~edge~~ & portion ~~of~~ WRC. ~~of~~ B.C. ~~to~~ ~~are~~
places ~~however~~ ~~they~~ ~~will~~ ~~be~~ ~~involved~~, ~~and~~ ~~it~~ ~~appears~~ ^{opportunities}
through ~~and~~ ~~on~~ ~~the~~ ~~understanding~~; ~~also~~ ~~that~~ ~~of~~ ~~this~~
~~is~~ ~~not~~ ~~in~~ ~~accordance~~ ~~with~~ ~~the~~ ~~best~~ ~~"~~ ~~practice~~ ~~"~~ ~~may~~ ~~be~~ ~~made~~
with ~~attention~~ ~~or~~ ~~injury~~ ~~of~~ ~~an~~ ~~right~~ ~~or~~ ~~portion~~ ~~of~~ ~~Cops~~
on ~~an~~ ~~side~~ ~~of~~ ~~any~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~said~~ ~~places~~
~~of~~ ~~course~~ ~~for~~ ~~itself~~ ~~places~~

~~reference~~ ~~is~~ ~~made~~. ~~The~~ ~~steps~~ ~~being~~ ~~prepared~~
to ~~take~~ ~~upon~~ ~~or~~ ~~immediately~~ ~~after~~ ~~the~~ ~~issuance~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~decision~~
approbation & ratification, ~~upon~~ ~~proper~~ ~~acquaintance~~ ~~or~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~circumstances~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~case~~
discharge ^{from} ~~by~~ ~~the~~ ~~B.C.~~ - ~~to~~ ~~validate~~ ~~in~~ ~~all~~ ~~respects~~
~~with~~ ~~the~~ ~~case~~, ~~as~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~decision~~ ~~issued~~. - ~~Approved~~

steps - Upon which the steps in favor of (both sides)
have taken ^{up} ~~the~~ ~~case~~ of ~~the~~ ~~remittance~~ ~~to~~ ~~the~~ ~~members~~ ~~communicated~~
in ~~the~~ ~~order~~ ~~to~~ ~~their~~ ~~members~~.

24 March 1684

BAL

Resumption being deliberated upon the remittance
in favor of WRC [supra] ^{decision} is found
good that the final ~~decision~~ ~~is~~ ~~made~~ ~~by~~ ~~the~~ ~~Members~~ ...
with the intention of the case with special clause, shall be
approved & ratified & an Act of approbation & ratification
shall be ^{dispatched} ~~dispatched~~ ~~in~~ ~~proper~~ ~~form~~ -

29 April 1694

AC.

Recd. memo in order Schmelman ^{re} whereby ^{is} held in the Elector's
 Resolution of Architects Decision ^{& requesting} (to him, to order the
 Directors of the WTC to comply with the decision.
 and WTC to follow the instructions ^{orders accordingly}
 Copy of Resolution taken before WTC with orders accordingly -

The original Resolution of Elector Frederick dated
 "Collen ^{an} au Spec" ^{the} 4th April 1694 [which writes
 the instructions in full] is in Sg. 6127.

14 July 1694

Gold Coast

Recd. by Gen. WTC. per Mr. Murr ^{de} 16th inst
^{points of production}
 with ~~of~~ ^{of} ~~debits~~ : for amount of £ ^{of} ~~at~~ ^{draft} ~~of~~ ^{minutes} being sent
 for 14 Aug. - ^{of} ~~of~~ ^{draft} ~~of~~ ^{minutes} being sent
 for app. for approval.

[88545] P.D. (8810)

§ 9. re Applicant of Mr. Gen. Jael hints having come
 here & Jean Satt his assigned tutor
 has died. Jean Stapflorst was eding personally
 re. also as to hisel Jean ~~Wittelmann~~ ^{Hottelmann}
 by personally affixed a Factor of Commerce & Auditor
 Johannes Pusebraus personally a hisel re re.

24 Sept 1694

On applon of Mrs WRC. ~~John~~ ^{granted} Commision appd for Johan
Stephert a br Ew on Cf Africa vice Joan Schot
Scott accd.

Gold Coast

1695

29 Decr: 1695 [607 59 654]

7 Sept 1695.

Accd P of D to Mrs WRC for Assembly X set out on 2-0 (0310)
Oct 1695. Appd (p. up 74)

P of D [595100] (1088) early of year with.

14 November 1695

Gold Coast

On applon of Mrs WRC. Commⁿ appd for Jan Van Steenbergen
[about Factor vice, now acting]. a br ^{was} a Cf Africa, vice
Johan Stephert. gewin his deumische.

76.
Recd 28. $\frac{1696.}{1696}$ [28 658].

9 October 1696

Recd Co of Gov WRC by the hand of 5th inst
Pd D in account of \bar{x} at hand on 4 (or 5 November
1696. Affd subject to draft minutes by way
book one in xon & appl.

[28 5788] Pd. D. (28 11). with of int & D.C.

19 Oct 1696

In the Gov WRC re copies of (draft) & letters a C of G.
Orig Co dat 16 Oct 1696 in 28 5788.

Recd
11 Nov 1696.

Recd Co of Gov WRC by the hand of 11th inst
of 28 with and annexes o complete Remonstrance a label
of Hans of of Wollos and the proceedings taken against them in
Sweden re ship "Hana" Capt. Calvorno getranspore
& loads of 1669. - In refer to WRC re report.

1694.

Recd 28 1694 (89.659).

24 January 1694.

Recd to him bers WRC Ch Stock ad 22nd inst with
upst 1000 recd of 11 ber last. (supra) - 675 to
us Hacten in wife...

[895488.] Original letter at supra.

Thy part. at int. clia, ad. under Treaty of 1664.
Thy part. at Cobo also was transferred on payment
made with King of Sweden's Volpenochte other ^{subin} in
89 was WRC an liable - as also to bers of ~~Wolters~~ ^{Wolters}

Enclosed: also letter is extract to memorial handed
by Johan Philip Allerscron to Wolter Steps on 31 July 1662
(which sees uncopy write). -

8 Aug 1694.

RgD. to Account 5 1/2 through 16 to 17 Sept 1694
88 12 (no interest)

Note

1698
to
1700

to (de) SS (Hansen WTC.) 5788 which was
with 1700 contains nothing of interest
of interest except Points of Deliberation sent in to
SS for successive Assemblies of X. Under these are
de Resolutions of SS. In years 1698, 1699
& 1700 have not been used; but de (oldest) notes
are sufficient for the purpose. p.w. term:

[SS. 5788]. P.D. Assembly X¹ 2 (la & Sept 1698. SS Resol: 1698 [SS. 660
Incl. SS 10 no interest

.. P.D. Assembly X¹ 1-28 Sept 1699. .. 1699 [" 661]
Cont. SS 11. no interest

.. P.D. Assembly X¹ 4 to 5 Oct 1700 .. 1700 [" 662]
Month SS 12 Res. with (Hansen 1699
renewed annually).

End of Resolutions SS. up to 1700

Note. Resolutions of SS. re prolongation of Charter of WTC are on
inter alia 9 May. so have 1700.

St Gen 6126 [from page 62 supra]

The two enclosures to de Schuettens memo of
19 January 1683, which are in Dutch, are as follows:-

"Copy" Achtenveertig ^{in de Roque} de twee Compromies welck posted is
on the 18th March 1680 by de Stuyvesant Gedwongenheit
Gedwongenheitden of de W.C. ~~afhandelt~~ afhandelt afhandelt afhandelt
of de W.C. befre de Not Adam van der Smalinger &
certain intimes ~~at~~ W.C. and de Acte of jurrogatie of
uws Alteus Tolligh Abraham van der Ende by de
gedwongenheitden of de W.C. on the 2nd Jan 1680 befre
saw Adam van der Smalinger & seker intimes, geloden,
... .. omst 2 reliet Resolutions of St. of 2 Jan
1680 & 10 Jan 1682 effly limande bet aflossen van der
beed ... St 3rd de sewelle partijen intende ten
anistad by der respective Advocates Procureurs offhand
hied uws befre us & after dat we had seen &
ed de respective lycke & andere gedaan & seworen
by a re behalf of de of A.D.C. & of W.C. as also de
part intiden de intiden doorp gewolck & also de
pp & muniments postred & in side specally de
scrijturen van rechten of de respective parties ...

1 And after we had likewise printed, tried & made
the waters amiable, we, ~~the~~ Arbitrators, ^{in a private}
declare that we do not find ourselves in a state ^{to} to submit
the respective offices in former manner before the said
Commissions with the orders of Surrogation or relative
therein shall be substituted & so far as we are amplified
in such manner that Arbitrators in deciding the said
offices shall be obliged to enquire and by their self
judge upon the petition over the right of the
person both of the ~~Parties~~ B.P.C. & of the W.C. on
defective condition the former may give
satisfaction to the G.C. of Geneva and the affairs thereof.
Without that either shall or by the intervention
thereof to follow, any the least ill-treatment shall be
permitted for amity or peace of any
right a portion of any of the said places
by the respective Commissions respectively worded;
and that we do not see that the same offices
and the petition were not that right & the
portion under a behave by parties shall
we are obliged to execute: as also that we do not
desire Commissions the orders of Surrogation
relative therein shall also be substituted & so far as we are
amplified so that Arbitrators shall also be able

te deinde de diffus an de damage & de rijen, wint de W.C.
keo Copu tegebrocht i den Brode el chere flows wint de W.C.
cloue ^{Los} te fort o c lorde rtoch verselfen daarop de wensynde
sedem behorlyk tander enige potentie wens de wens
incompetentie van Arbiters by partijen respectieullen
zjn voldongen, pinstreue & i stede van wycen
gebrocht. Thus done i de Copu de 2nd Sept 1643.

V. J. H. H. H.

Willem Ruys

Van den Ende

Motheus Sonmans.

Gelijc ten Compromis Copu " Ende dat alles met den verstaan
... " rading. " gefactureert wederde".

End of S. J. Resol & Massin up to the end of 1700

1683
X.

1683

Assembly of the X.

Resolutions of P.B. commencing 4 March 1683 [amend.].
[WTC 833.]

[~~into for ref (14) p 46.~~]

18 March 1683.

~~1683~~
Gold Coast
(W.I.C.)

On the a/c of the yacht Senarochi despatched by the
br' Gen Thomas Ernsthuys from El Lucia of the C.d. P.
are rec'd from & rec'd: a Br Gen ^{the former} Janzen ^{br' Gen}
brother Daniel Verhulst written at El Lucia the 1st ^{Decr}
last ^{containing} advice: a Br Gen d'br Gen Thomas
Ernsthuys of ^{also} 12th Decr 1682 and duplicate of letter from
self of 30 October 120th Decr last year all ~~containing~~ contain
advice of his arrival, of what had happened since, & of
the state of the Coast ^{with annexes}. . .
[none of these letters have been found].

28th March 1683.

Gold Coast
(W.I.C.)

Being exhibited at Assembly de Petition from the
br' Gen of such necessaries as would be required for the
of ^{building} houses & repair of the Castle bel Lucia & its
buildings - referred to the Brs the Brust.
to make such distribution of presents among the 4 companies for the

Statement of
the various expenses ^{5 May 1683.}
^{Orders of rotation}
^{Thomas Kerker} ^{Thomas Kerker} ^{Thomas Kerker} ^{Thomas Kerker} ^{Thomas Kerker}
expenses this.

Gold Coin
(516)

19 May 1683

Mr Keyser has represented at the Assembly that as
by their El Mayor given the rest of the said cargo
of ~~80~~ 80000 Gulden to Versanden Trade Co. G. must
also be made the inters of the part of the petition
from the Sr Gen Ernsthuis being the way materials
for the repairs of the house & Castle El Mono.

21st May 1683.

Account: reporting for the month is away with the the Q^r
the respect of materials & expenses of repairs of the houses
of the fortifications of Castle El Mono.

Assembly of ~~X~~ the commencing 1 Sept 1683.

2nd Sept 1683. P.M. ^{now is}

Whereupon proceeding with the reading of the letters from the C of
Africa, it was the Sr Gen Thomas Ernsthuis written in
the fort St George El Mono on the C of G. the 6th Dec last year 1682 and

BAC

1683
X

Circumstantial advice of the situation of affairs here & inter alia de
postulation on the Gold Coast between Attem & Boring on a
hill named Poccoroti by two ships which von Gemen they have
used under a common charter for 18th sector of Blung of
all of which means the dep's of the presid the French have reported
the information has been given by memo written Holuo the
viz byloge in justification that government. Whom you
a list of 30 per the unchartered latter visible taken &
equal mode, & requested fear to pursue that war, as being
of especially great importance, as shall be found proper

W.C. 9 Feb 1683 Recd by B. B. J. from Drushings the Lewis 25 Feb 1683.

Gold Coast 3rd Sept 1683. do do .. 1st April 1683

(W.C.) 6th Sept 1683 Continued reading letter of 1st April. 25,000 per ann
Prospis to be sent for Gen as reported therein.

" 9 Sept 1683 Came into the Assembly Daniel Verhouter
late for Gen ~~at~~ at Elmsie on the C of G. ...

... Besides, a vast of many Whilopers appearing this, to continue
B. J. Drushings' proposal to fix the prices of merchandise & they shall
be & Council shall find to least difference most profit of the Co
especially the price of the Saizen if they will ^{imposed} allow license at
at 1.00 per stick ...

" 8 Sept. 9 Sept (pm) Reading of Journal of B. J.

" x 13 Sept 1683 " Transactions made by B. J. Drushings reported in his
letter of journal, an appd vizt -

Uentli van der Burgh & Chas. Factor et Stenora : Nicolaas Sukeno
do et Joh. Rossaert : Jan Melroing ditto . Joh. Neuh: Coru :
Joris Bruthuys Factor et Cra . r . r .

x (am) Van der Burge has communicated Colles' Accounts, BAC
a certain list written at Embden 15 Aug^h last, by certain gentlemen
to the Sted of Embden with circumstantial report & advice of the
designs of those who in the name next Com^{rs} of WST Sted^{ts}
of Blungh, van der Burge have conceived
their navigation & commerce to the Coast of Africa - to proceed in
bands of deff Com^{rs} Sept 1683 upon their design.

15 Sept 1683. Order and reading of B^g the Bruthuys' Journal.

23 Sept 1683 Relation of B^g the Bruthuys' for promotion of the
business & applications of the India, appd.

18 Nov 1683 to B^g the Bruthuys appd

Gold
Com^{rs}
(WTC)

1684

Assembly of X commencing 20 April 1684

25 April 1684 In presence of the ^{to de table} Com^{rs} of St. Paul
of the ^{agenda} Com^{rs} [to be in WST India] especially
concerning the accusations & replies of B^g Daniel Verhulst

... Resolved that an estimate shall be made of the damage which
the Coj has suffered by the so unusually long ^{detention} operation
of the ships in the Coj. - (which deficits are commissioned

Coups could have such a remarkable claim against him, we
 could remain healthy can this annually - persons to
 present in April: taken on 25th of 25th ult. ...
 - re amounts -

Accounts of X concerning 8 Decr 1684

13 December 1684 Is handed over by friends of Sir Pen that
 Ernsthuys a letter written by chief factor Joris
 Ernsthuys trading at Fort Nassau of ... July last ... with
 advice that sd Sir Pen on 28 June last died at Eduluna
 that Nicolaas Smeets, chief factor of Ulunia had been appointed
 provisionally in his place by the Council on the Coast. ...
 - two items in Decr - re ship Cornelia & ship Wapen v Blang -

Death of
 Sir Pen
 Ernsthuys
 28 June 1684

~~Accounts of X concerning 20 March 1685~~
 @ 16 April.

- will except a few items re Blang, ship -

[Vide
 Yellow
 note book
 ① P 47.]

Accounts of X concerning 24 Sept 1685 - 5 Decr.

1 October 1685 Report on 4th P of D. of X on 1 PPS re ship Wapen v Blang
 on first issue.
 - as to completion of prior verification with PAC re int'lques -

6400

1685. 18th October 1685 On 10th P.A.D. to continue lincos survey with de
 Pons [sic] - Mansuet who says he's confirmed as to
 the solon of 300 per moult. Involvements, besides what B's papers recd,
 1/3 of profit of lincos cots or 1/3 of ^{lime juice} lincos cap: - Coz to use 1/2 doz of lincos cap
 + 1/2 of lincos cots, the remaining 1/3 of lincos cots to go to Haffis master
 of Haffis lincos then sure. Gabriel Schloffer, ^{of} St Gallen
 opted parties at lincos.

[ACC. 834]. Annals of X ^{SIC.} Commencing 5 April 1686 -
 u. P. A.C. Papers printed (ie. the Ample Deduction)
BAC. 5 April 1686 u. filing - ~~papers printed~~
 10th April. (P. 44) *
 consisting of filing.

~~Annals of X commencing 14 Oct 1686. - 7 Dec 1686.
 17 Oct 1686 - u. edition of Haffis collection (1686) u. P. A.C. u. lincos
 B's. to send over lincos of P. A.C. thorough process of Cap.
 - Haffis & lincos -~~

Annals of X. 17th April 1687 - 7 May 1687.
 29 April 1687 BAC copies of file, 150 tons, 34 quos 110 men
 to per water at lincos. ^{a C.A.S.} (ough the machine to
 equip. for same purpose, a file with 30 lines, 90 sacks 20 soldiers

Vide
 (1) p. 56

Accounts of \bar{E} 2nd Sept — 13th Dec 1687.

6th Sept 1687 for road from Jockhins chiel factor at Fort Aust: at Comantz.

Jos. Bruchmans, Comte d'Alvares & Fycol Johannes Stophorst.

11 November 1687. re Comte D'Alvares's copy of figure of F. G. S. ship

Accounts of \bar{E} 19 May — 15 June 1688

Orders re Plans & Accounts —

Accounts of \bar{E} . 7th Oct — 30 Oct 1688.

Esquips Comantz Accounts. Claims against br: Verhulst

~~* his Com book included the use of lot under order [was the placard of 1680 (sic)]~~
~~gens in placards of the stock at Verhulst schepen [Yllas & Kib] (16) p 55~~
~~in sol ways books likely all ways rewards to business~~
~~within in their lands as well as particulars.~~

Note.

Recd: of \bar{E} & Recd: of the Recd, with late contents
rec of his correspondence to from here & at Col. J. which by me
in 1687 & 1692 info. has been collected as all the information

causa - de revoluției slavei le. i. cauzelor (sau) i.
de către țările ruse.

